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LSI Industries is an Image Solutions company, dedicated to advancing solid-state LED technology and applications with
lighting, graphics and technology. We combine integrated technology, design, and manufacturing to supply high quality
lighting fixtures and graphics elements for applications in the commercial, retail and specialty niche markets. LSI’s Lighting
Segment produces high performance, energy efficient lighting products dedicated to outdoor, architectural outdoor, indoor,
architectural indoor and accent/downlight applications. The Graphics Segment designs, produces, markets and
manages a wide array of custom indoor and outdoor graphics programs including signage, menu board systems, decorative
fixturing, LED displays and digital signage. In addition, we provide design support, engineering and project

management for custom programs for today’s retail environment. The Company’s Technology Segment designs, produces,
and supports high performance light engines and large format billboard and sports screens using solid-state

LED technology.

LSI’s major markets are the petroleum / convenience store, multi-site retail (including
automobile dealerships, restaurants and national retail accounts) and the

commercial / industrial lighting markets. LSI employs approximately
1,800 people in fourteen facilities located in Ohio, California,

New York, North Carolina, Kansas, Kentucky, Rhode
Island,Tennessee,Texas and Montreal,Canada.

279876_cover  9/20/07  8:09 AM  Page 4



1

Contents 1

Financial Highlights 2

Chairman’s Letter 3

Technology Segment Letter 3

Lighting Segment Letter 4

Graphics Segment Letter 4

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations 6

Financial Statements 17

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 22

Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting 39

Reports of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm 40-42

Selected Financial Data 43

Corporate Information and Operating Facilities 44

Board of Directors, Corporate Officers and
Executive Management Inside Back Cover

“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements that are subject to numerous assumptions, risks or uncertainties. The Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as “estimates,”“anticipates,”“projects,”
“plans,” “expects,” “intends,” “believes,” “seeks,” “may,” “will,” “should” and similar expressions or the negative versions of these words, and by the context in
which they are used. Such statements are based upon current expectations of the Company and speak only as of the date made. Actual results could differ materially
from those contained in or implied by such forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include, but are
not limited to, the impact of competitive products and services, product demand and market acceptance risks, reliance on key customers, financial difficulties
experienced by customers, the adequacy of reserves and allowances for doubtful accounts, fluctuations in operating results or costs, unfavorable outcomes of
litigation, unexpected difficulties in integrating acquired businesses, the ability to retain key employees of acquired businesses and other factors identified in our filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company has no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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2007 2006 2005

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
(In thousands, except per share)

Net sales $337,453 $280,470 $282,440________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Operating income $  32,550 $  21,515 $ 23,026________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Net income $  20,789 $  14,443 $ 14,636________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Earnings per common share 
Basic $ .96 $ .72 $        .74________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Diluted $ .95 $ .71 $        .73________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

BALANCE SHEET DATA
(In thousands)

Working capital $  68,397 $  66,787 $ 67,189________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Total assets $233,612 $224,401 $172,637________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Long-term debt, including 
current maturities $ — $ 16,593 $      —________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Shareholders’ equity $176,061 $164,985 $138,040________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

CASH FLOW DATA
(In thousands)

Capital expenditures $ 5,960 $ 3,754 $ 3,630________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Depreciation and amortization $ 9,002 $ 6,773 $ 6,974________ _______ _______________ _______ _______

Cash flow from operating activities $ 36,964 $ 21,627 $ 27,482________ _______ _______________ _______ _______
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As I look back over the thirty-year history of LSI, I think it’s fair to say 2007
was one of our more interesting and successful years. Highlights include record
sales and profits, increased dividends, further penetration in the Commercial/Industrial
market, rollout of major image programs, development of solid-state based
lighting products, set up of dedicated production facilities for outdoor digital
billboards, and strong business momentum as we enter fiscal 2008.

During fiscal 2007 we commenced the rollout of three major programs – Chevron
Oil Company, 7-Eleven, and Dairy Queen – all at the same time. These are large
programs and it took a tremendous amount of work by our people to execute
these great rollouts. They are still going on and will continue to do so
through the balance of calendar 2007 and into 2008. What is important is that
LSI is now gaining more recognition in the retail segment of our economy as
a company that can provide graphics and lighting products to enhance a
nighttime and daytime image for any program no matter how large it may
be. This capability certainly will continue to enhance LSI’s future growth.

During fiscal 2007 we made significant progress to centralize all LSI operations.
Our ultimate goal is to create a single corporate identity that will bring to our
markets a selection of products and services unequaled in our industry. In
addition, we are always mindful of controlling costs and improving efficiencies
– another benefit of centralization.

We successfully absorbed the Saco acquisition, creating new market opportunities
in visual electronic and advertising boards (billboards), sports electronic boards,
and solid-state LED lighting. In October our Lighting Group will introduce a
revolutionary and affordable LED canopy light fixture to the petroleum market.
It will be a totally new design and will provide a 60% plus reduction in
energy and a 10-year maintenance free fixture. We plan to add to our solid-
state LED capabilities through both internal development and carefully selected
acquisitions. As we look toward the future, these new solid-state products
will have an increasingly important role in serving our customers with
lighting and graphics products and services.

Our Graphics Group continues to excel in developing national rollout programs
that address our customers’ image requirements. With substantial investment
in state-of-the-art equipment, our graphics unit possesses capabilities
second to none. We are presently active in pursuing a number of new large
national programs.

I believe that LSI is in its best position ever to grow. The vision to build a company
that is financially strong, has a vast and unique product and service base to
supply multiple markets, and a strong commitment to its shareholders and
employees is solidly in place. In the years to come LSI will continue to build
its market position in many different markets with products and services that
are important to our environment and to our country’s security. LSI – a company
with a smart vision.

Sincerely,
Robert J. Ready, Chairman, President and CEO, LSI Industries Inc.

Our first year as part of the LSI Industries family was a very exciting one for
us. We discovered a company that truly stands by its name of Leadership,
Strength and Innovation with dedicated and highly competent employees, a
success oriented management team and strong relationships with their customers.
We were pleased to see that the proper integration mechanisms were in
place to facilitate the full integration of LSI Saco within the LSI family and make
it a truly successful acquisition resulting in synergies.

The combination of the emerging importance of solid-state LEDs as a cost-
effective, superior light source and LSI’s well-established position in the lighting
and graphics markets creates a very powerful growth platform. We intend, in
the coming years, to be fully committed to assist in positioning LSI Industries
as a market leader in solid-state based products in both lighting and moving
graphics.

During the past year, LSI Technology Solutions Plus assisted in the formation
of a Sales and Support team that is based out of North Canton. Reporting
directly to LSI Graphics Solutions Plus, “LSI LED VIDEO & DIGITAL SIGNAGE”
will be responsible for most of the LED Video product sales. The markets include
Sports, Billboards, Digital Signage, Commercial and Transportation. The
Entertainment and Highly Custom projects will remain under the responsibility
of LSI Technology Solutions Plus due to the benefits of our Research and
Development expertise in engineering such projects. With LSI’s significant
commitment to the efficient design and manufacture of digital billboards, we
assisted in the creation of a dedicated manufacturing center in Cincinnati.

The set up of this Sales and Support effort and transfer of responsibility follows
the direction to focus LSI Technology Solutions Plus to a full time Technology,
Research and Development center within LSI and to support LSI Lighting Solutions
Plus’ and LSI Graphics Solutions Plus’ needs for technology.

Our excitement over future opportunities in the solid-state LED technology
segment continues to grow. With the current structure, LSI is well positioned
for growth for many years to come. New product lines are set to be
introduced this year and as demonstrated in the past our commitment to
innovation has been and will continue to be a staple of the company.

Sincerely,
Fred Jalbout, President, LSI Technology Solutions Plus
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G R A P H I C SL I G H T I N G

Fiscal 2007 was a good year for the lighting group as we continued to grow
our presence in the Commercial/Industrial and National Account lighting market.
Our challenge for the year was to offset continued softness in our niche market
segments and replace shrinking certain national account volume that would
not rebound again until FY2008. Our growth in the Commercial/Industrial
market segment for the year was nearly 9% on a strong foundation of improved
customer service, aggressive marketing and vastly improved agent base. LSI
has become increasingly recognized as a product line of choice with our agents
and influential lighting specifiers in the Commercial and National Account
markets. This market penetration provides an important platform for future
product releases that feature the integration of LED solid-state lighting technology
into a wide range of products.

We introduced several new product families in indoor and outdoor architectural
lighting and worked to improve our overall business execution in order to
maintain our income performance as we shifted our focus to these new
highly competitive opportunities. In addition, we strengthened our foundation
to support future growth with a reorganized new product engineering group
and new experienced leadership in the procurement team. We continue to
invest in state-of-the-art manufacturing technology and will soon be turning
out product on a new multi-million dollar automated fabrication center that
will support some of our newest lighting products.

While the lighting group continues to make progress moving into new market
opportunities, our  traditional Petroleum/Convenience Store, Retail Automotive,
QuickServe Restaurant, and National Account markets have served us well
and will continue to be a critical component of our performance in the years
to come. Our ART® (Advance Reflector Technology) System remains the best
performing Retail Automotive exterior site lighting product in the market. As
we enter fiscal 2008, we are ready to introduce the LSI Crossover™, another
major product for the Petroleum industry that we feel will revolutionize
canopy lighting the way the Scottsdale® did over ten years ago.

The Crossover is the result of many months of LED solid-state lighting development
work and will be unveiled as the first truly affordable LED based canopy light.
With energy savings exceeding 60% in most cases, a payback under three years
and mercury free material content, the Crossover will be the most environmentally
friendly canopy lighting fixture ever produced. As we did with the Scottsdale,
we are again defining the standard for our competitors to chase.

Our outlook for the future remains extremely positive. By applying the
Power of our strong foundation to a Vision of innovative technology applications,
LSI Lighting Solutions Plus will continue to grow LSI’s Image as a very
unique and successful marketer of Lighting, Graphics, and Technology Solutions.

Sincerely,
Scott D. Ready, President, LSI Lighting Solutions Plus

The Graphics Segment completed fiscal 2007 with record results in both
sales and income. This is wonderful but basically old news and we now set
our sights and goals at a higher level for fiscal 2008.

Since the formation of LSI Graphic Solutions Plus in June 2003, our volume has
grown an average of 13% annually. FY 2007 operating income was about
80% of the combined FY 2006 and FY 2005 results!  During that same timeframe,
we have streamlined manufacturing techniques, improved personnel, and
implemented system controls among other changes that resulted in this record
2007. Now with all our learned disciplines and refined techniques, we enter
2008 very optimistic about this year and beyond.

We enter fiscal 2008 in extremely good shape with more opportunities and
backlog than I ever remember. Our market condition vital signs are also very
strong and show good future opportunities.

The positive road, which I expected and predicted in my last two shareholder
letters, is now a reality. As we continue to acquire and improve additional
resources, talent, customers and maturity in all areas, we expect our results
to also grow.

My last shareholder letter stated that “the Graphics Segment currently had
all of our assets, people, plants and equipment, fully utilized to near
maximum levels.” I am happy to state that the situation is more robust as of
this writing. We still remain on the acquisition path which has the potential
to lead us to more customers, resources, technologies and new markets. Currently
we are reviewing additional state-of-the-art digital printing equipment which
is one of the core disciplines of our business. This equipment has the speed
to reduce 7 days of print time to 1 day and, just as important, would springboard
us to new and expanded markets.

We are adding sales staff and support personnel while training our current force
in the expanding sales of video boards and digital signage. We will boost our
resources devoted to this market segment. The addition of disposable pixel
technology, creating active video communications, along with our strong
core print technologies will provide us total control of many of our best customers
and their image objectives.

We truly are the market leader in the retail graphics industry and aim to keep
our number one position.

Sincerely,
David W. McCauley, President, LSI Graphics Solutions Plus

279876_editorial  9/17/07  8:09 AM  Page 4



5

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations......6

Financial Statements..............................................17

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements......22

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting ..........................................39

Reports of Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm..............................40, 41 and 42

Selected Financial Data ......................................43

279876_Fin_Sept_V04.qxd  9/19/07  5:48 PM  Page 5



6

NET SALES BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Lighting Segment $196,533 $195,805 $177,021
Graphics Segment 123,788 83,418 105,419
Technology Segment 17,132 1,247 —___________ _____________ _____________

$337,453 $280,470 $282,440___________ _____________ ________________________ _____________ _____________

The Company’s “forward looking statements” as
presented earlier in this Annual Report in the “Safe
Harbor” Statement should be referred to when
reading Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2007 Compared To 2006

Net sales of $337,453,000 in fiscal 2007 increased
20.3% from fiscal 2006 net sales of $280,470,000.
Lighting Segment net sales increased 0.4% to
$196,533,000 and Graphics Segment net sales
increased 48.4% to $123,788,000 as compared to the
prior year. The new Technology Segment reported net
sales of $17,132,000 in fiscal 2007 as compared to
$1,247,000 for the five days of fiscal 2006 that LSI Saco
Technologies was owned by the Company. Sales to the
petroleum/convenience store market represented 26%
and 25% of net sales in fiscal 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Net sales to this, the Company’s largest
niche market, are reported in both the Lighting and
Graphics Segments, depending upon the product or
service sold, and were up 24% from last year to
$87,370,000 as Graphics sales to this market increased
significantly and Lighting sales decreased. The
petroleum/convenience store market has been, and
will continue to be, a very important niche market for
the Company; however, if sales to other markets and
customers increase (including through the addition of
the Technology Segment) more than net sales to this

market, then the percentage of net sales to the
petroleum/convenience store market would be
expected to decline.

The $0.7 million increase in Lighting Segment net
sales is primarily the result of an $8.1 million or 9.1%
increase in commissioned net sales to the commercial
and industrial lighting market, partially offset by
decreased lighting sales to our niche markets of
petroleum/convenience stores, automotive dealerships,
and retail national accounts (totaling a net $6.7 million
decrease). The Company implemented price increases in
fiscal year 2006 and August 2006 on many of its lighting
products to follow general trends in the industry to
recover the cost of increasing material components.

The $40.4 million or 48.4% increase in Graphics
Segment net sales is primarily the result of increased
net sales related to two image conversion programs in
the petroleum/convenience store market
($22.6 million increase), to an image conversion
program and normal sales to a national drug store
retailer ($15.9 million increase) and to a menu board
conversion program for a quick serve restaurant
retailer ($9.9 million increase), partially offset by
completion of programs or reduction of net sales from
other graphics customers.

Image and brand programs, whether full
conversions or enhancements, are important to the
Company’s strategic direction. Image programs
include situations where our customers refurbish their
retail sites around the country by replacing some or all
of the lighting, graphic elements, menu board systems
and possibly other items they may source from other
suppliers. These image programs often take several
quarters to complete and involve both our customers’
corporate-owned sites as well as their franchisee-
owned sites, the latter of which involve separate sales
efforts by the Company with each franchisee. The
Company may not always be able to replace net sales
immediately when a large image conversion program
has concluded. Brand programs typically occur as new
products are offered or new departments are created

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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within an existing retail store. Relative to net sales to
a customer before and after an image or brand
program, net sales during the program are typically
significantly higher, depending upon how much of the
lighting, graphics or menu board business is awarded
to the Company. Sales related to a customer’s image
or brand program are reported in either the Lighting
Segment and/or the Graphics Segment, depending
upon the product and/or service provided.

The $15.9 million increase in Technology
Segment net sales is related to having a full year of
net sales in fiscal 2007 as compared to only five days
in fiscal 2006 due to the late June 2006 acquisition of
SACO Technologies Inc.

Gross profit of $89,179,000 in fiscal 2007
increased 25% from last year, and increased as a
percentage of net sales to 26.4% as compared to
25.5% last year. The increase in the gross profit
percentage is primarily due to the increased
weighting of net sales from the more profitable
Graphics and Technology Segments. The increase in
amount of gross profit is due primarily to the net
effects of the 20% increase in net sales (made up of a
0.4% increase in the Lighting Segment, a 48% increase
in the Graphics Segment, and the $15.9 million increase
in net sales in the Technology Segment), and increased
margins on installation revenue. While the Company’s
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 sales price increases on
select lighting products improved fiscal 2007 gross
profit, the following items also influenced the
Company’s gross profit margin on a consolidated
basis: competitive pricing pressures, and other
manufacturing expenses in support of increased
production requirements ($2.5 million of increased
wage, compensation and benefits costs; $0.6 million
of increased outside services; $0.4 million of increased
factory supplies; $0.3 million of increased rent expense;
$0.3 million increased repairs and maintenance;
$0.3 million increased depreciation expense; $0.4 million
decreased utilities and property taxes).

Selling and administrative expenses of
$56,629,000 in fiscal year 2007 increased $6.7 million,
but decreased to 16.8% as a percentage of net sales
from 17.8% last year. Employee compensation and
benefits expense increased $1.7 million in fiscal 2007 as
compared to last year, partially as a result of the
addition of LSI Saco Technologies as well as increases in
the rest of the Company. Other changes of expense
between years include increased expense related to
amortization of intangible assets ($1.8 million,
primarily associated with the intangible assets related
to LSI Saco Technologies), increased research &
development expense ($1.3 million, primarily
associated with research and development spending
related to LSI Saco Technologies), increased customer
accommodations ($0.8 million), increased bad debt
expense ($0.3 million), increased depreciation expense
($0.1 million), increased product warranty expense
($0.3 million), increased legal expenses ($0.2 million)
and increased sales commissions ($0.2 million). These
increases were partially offset by a fiscal 2007 reversal
of a loss contingency reserve related to a menu board
patent litigation ($0.6 million) and reduced use of
outside services ($0.4 million).

The Company reported net interest expense of
$823,000 in fiscal 2007 as compared to net interest
income of $472,000 last year. The Company was in a
positive cash position and was debt free for substantially
all of fiscal 2006 and generated interest income on
invested cash. The Company was in a borrowing
position the first nine and one-half months of fiscal
2007 primarily as a result of the LSI Saco Technologies
acquisition in June 2006 as well as 2007 working capital
needs. Customer cash advances related to a menu board
conversion program brought the Company to a positive
cash position in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. The
effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 was 34.5% reflective of
Canadian tax rates and favorable tax credits as
compared to 34.3% in fiscal 2006. The Company’s
operations generate favorable tax credits, including a
Canadian research and development tax credit in 2007
related to LED lighting and video screen activities in the
Company’s Montreal facility.
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Net income increased 43.9% in fiscal 2007 to
$20,789,000 as compared to $14,443,000 last year. The
increase is primarily the result of increased gross profit
on increased net sales, partially offset by increased
operating expenses and income taxes, as well as net
interest expense as compared to net interest income
last year. Diluted earnings per share was $0.95 in fiscal
2007, as compared to $0.71 per share last year. The
weighted average common shares outstanding for
purposes of computing diluted earnings per share in
fiscal 2007 were 21,924,000 shares as compared to
20,429,000 shares last year, increased primarily due to
the 1.4 million shares issued as partial payment for the
LSI Saco Technologies acquisition.

2006 Compared To 2005

The Company acquired SACO Technologies Inc.
on June 26, 2006, which it renamed LSI Saco
Technologies. The operating results of LSI Saco
Technologies have been included in fiscal 2006 results
for those five days of June since the acquisition date.
A new business segment was created with the
acquisition of LSI Saco, the Technology Segment, for
which there were no results included in fiscal 2005.
While the Technology Segment reported $1.2 million
of net sales in those five days of June 2006, the
operating profit was slightly below break even
primarily due to purchase accounting requirements of
capitalizing the expected gross profit on all finished
goods in inventory as of the date of acquisition. When
those finished goods are sold, the Company records
the full amount of net sales at zero gross profit. Most
of those finished goods shipped in June 2006, and the
remainder will ship in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.
Therefore, the Company will experience the continued
effect of zero gross profit on the sale of certain
finished goods, but to a lesser extent.

Net sales of $280,470,000 in fiscal 2006 decreased
0.7% from fiscal 2005 net sales of $282,440,000.
Lighting Segment net sales increased 11% to

$195,805,000 and Graphics Segment net sales
decreased 21% to $83,418,000 as compared to the
prior year. The new Technology Segment reported net
sales of $1,247,000 in fiscal 2006. Sales to the
petroleum/convenience store market represented 25%
of fiscal 2006 and 2005 net sales. Net sales to this, the
Company’s largest market, are reported in both the
Lighting and Graphics Segments, depending upon the
product or service sold, and were up 1% from last year
to $70,649,000. The petroleum/convenience store
market has been, and will continue to be, a very
important niche market for the Company; however, if
sales to other markets and customers increase more
than net sales to this market, then the percentage of
net sales to the petroleum/convenience store market
would be expected to decline.

The $18.8 million increase in Lighting Segment
net sales is primarily the result of an aggregate
increase of $10.1 million of lighting sales to our niche
markets of petroleum/convenience stores, automotive
dealerships, quick service restaurants, and retail
national accounts (including sales to Wal-Mart Stores,
Inc.), as well as an $8.9 million increase in
commissioned net sales to the commercial and
industrial lighting market. Net sales to Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. were approximately $30.4 million or 11%
of the Company’s total net sales in fiscal 2006, as
compared to net sales of approximately $30.2 million or
11% of the Company’s total net sales in fiscal 2005. The
Company implemented price increases in June 2005,
December 2005, and August 2006 on many of its lighting
products to follow general trends in the industry to
recover the cost of increasing material components.

The $22.0 million decrease in Graphics Segment
net sales is primarily the result of the effect of
decreased sales to a national drug store retailer for its
re-branding program that was completed in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 ($14.0 million) and
decreased sales related to a quick service restaurant
for its menu board enhancement program that was
substantially completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2005 ($7.0 million). The decrease in net sales related

279876_Fin_Sept_V04.qxd  9/19/07  5:48 PM  Page 8



9

to both of these programs means that these large roll
out graphics programs have been completed (in fiscal
2005) and sales were reflective of the ongoing
business level with those two customers in fiscal 2006.
The Company has begun another sizable re-branding
program for the national drug store retailer in fiscal
2007 for stores it acquired.

Image and brand programs, whether full
conversions or enhancements, are important to the
Company’s strategic direction. Image programs
include situations where our customers refurbish their
retail sites around the country by replacing some or all
of the lighting, graphic elements, menu board systems
and possibly other items they may source from other
suppliers. These image programs often take several
quarters to complete and involve both our customers’
corporate-owned sites as well as their franchisee-
owned sites, the latter of which involve separate sales
efforts by the Company with each franchisee. The
Company may not always be able to replace net sales
immediately when a large image conversion program
has concluded. Brand programs typically occur as new
products are offered or new departments are created
within an existing retail store. Relative to net sales to
a customer before and after an image or brand
program, net sales during the program are typically
significantly higher, depending upon how much of the
lighting, graphics or menu board business is awarded
to the Company. Sales related to a customer’s image
or brand program are reported in either the Lighting
Segment and/or the Graphics Segment, depending
upon the product and/or service provided.

Gross profit of $71,413,000 in fiscal 2006
decreased 1% from last year, and decreased as a
percentage of net sales to 25.5% in fiscal 2006 as
compared to 25.6% last year. The decrease in amount
of gross profit is due primarily to the net effects of the
1% net decrease in net sales (made up of a 11%
increase in the Lighting Segment and a 21% decrease
in the Graphics Segment), product mix resulting in a
lower content of material in cost of sales and higher
labor and manufacturing overhead content,

substantially improved performance in the Company’s
New York facility, higher margins on installation
revenue, and the affect of purchase accounting on the
gross profit of the Technology Segment. While the
Company’s fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006 sales price
increases on select lighting products improved fiscal
2006 gross profit, the following items also influenced
the Company’s gross profit margin: net increased
manufacturing wages, incentives and benefit costs
($2.2 million), competitive pricing pressures, unabsorbed
manufacturing costs in the Company’s New York facility,
and other manufacturing expenses ($0.6 million of
increased utilities, and $0.9 million reduction of
supplies, maintenance and depreciation expense).

Selling and administrative expenses in fiscal year
2006 increased $0.8 million and increased to 17.8% as
a percentage of net sales from 17.4% last year. The
Company recorded a non-cash charge of $428,000 in
fiscal 2006 for stock option expense, whereas in fiscal
2005 the Company only disclosed its stock option
expense as there was no requirement to record it in
the financial statements. Expense related to stock
options will continue in future periods through the
end of the vesting periods of stock options currently
outstanding. Otherwise, employee compensation and
benefits expense decreased $1.7 million in fiscal 2006
as compared to last year, primarily as a result of
significantly less incentive compensation. Increased
sales commissions ($1.7 million related to increased
lighting sales), increased legal fees ($1.1 million,
primarily associated with patent litigation), and
increased audit expenses ($0.3 million) were partially
offset by decreased product warranty expense
($0.2 million, primarily in the Lighting Segment),
decreased advertising and literature costs ($0.4 million),
and the lack of any fiscal 2006 goodwill impairment
charge ($0.2 million expense was recorded in fiscal
2005). Fiscal 2005 included a $370,000 gain on
recovery of a bad debt from the K-mart bankruptcy,
while fiscal 2006 had a much smaller recovery of
$99,000 related to the K-mart bankruptcy.
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The Company reported interest income of
$550,000 in fiscal 2006 from short term cash and other
investments as compared to $64,000 in fiscal 2005
because the Company was in a positive cash position
and was debt free from May 2005 to June 2006. The
Company went into a borrowing position as a result of
the LSI Saco Technologies acquisition in June 2006, and
was in a net borrowing position for the first eleven
months of fiscal 2005, thereby resulting in $78,000
interest expense in fiscal 2006 as compared to $217,000
in fiscal 2005. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 was
34.3% reflective of favorable tax credits and roll out of
deferred taxes, as compared to 36.0% in fiscal 2005.

Net income decreased 1.3% in fiscal 2006 to
$14,443,000 as compared to $14,636,000 last year. The
decrease is primarily the result of decreased gross
profit on decreased net sales and increased operating
expenses, partially offset by decreased income taxes,
and net interest income as compared to net interest
expense last year. Diluted earnings per share was
$0.71 in fiscal 2006, as compared to $0.73 per share
last year. The weighted average common shares
outstanding for purposes of computing diluted
earnings per share in fiscal 2006 were 20,429,000
shares as compared to 20,087,000 shares last year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company considers its level of cash on hand,
its borrowing capacity, its current ratio and working
capital levels to be its most important measures of
short-term liquidity. For long-term liquidity indicators,
the Company believes its ratio of long-term debt to
equity and its historical levels of net cash flows from
operating activities to be the most important measures.

At June 30, 2007 the Company had working
capital of $68.4 million, compared to $85.3 million at
December 31, 2006, and $66.8 million at
June 30, 2006.  The ratio of current assets to current
liabilities was 2.24 to 1 as compared to a ratio of 2.66
to 1 at June 30, 2006. The decrease in working capital
from December 31, 2006 to June 30, 2007 relates

primarily to a program in the Graphics Segment
whereby the Company receives full payment in
advance of any shipments (for which a current liability
has been recorded for customer prepayments and the
cash was used to pay down the Company’s long-term
debt and make short-term investments). The increase
in working capital from June 30, 2006 to
June 30, 2007 was primarily related to increased cash
and short-term investments ($7.4 million), a significant
increase in inventory ($4.4 million), increased accounts
receivable ($4.4 million), and decreased accounts
payable ($3.1 million), partially offset by increased
accrued expenses and customer prepayments
($17.8 million).

The Company generated $37.0 million of cash
from operating activities in fiscal 2007 as compared to
a generation of $21.6 million last year. The $15.4 million
increase in net cash flows from operating activities in
fiscal 2007 is primarily the net result of more net
income ($6.3 million favorable), an increase rather
than a decrease in accounts receivable (unfavorable
change of $5.2 million), a larger increase in
inventories (unfavorable change of $2.4 million), a
larger increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses (favorable change of $14.0 million),
increased depreciation and amortization (favorable
$2.2 million), less expense related to the non-qualified
deferred compensation plan (unfavorable $0.7 million),
increased stock option expense (favorable $0.3 million),
a loss rather than a gain on disposal of fixed assets
(favorable $0.3 million).

Net accounts receivable were $55.8 million and
$51.6 million at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006,
respectively. The increase of over $4.4 million in gross
receivables is primarily due to a larger amount of net
sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 as compared
to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The DSO (Days’
Sales Outstanding) improved to 48 days at June 30, 2007
from 55 days at June 30, 2006. The Company believes
that its receivables are ultimately collectible or
recoverable, net of certain reserves, and that aggregate
allowances for doubtful accounts are adequate.
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Inventories at June 30, 2007 increased
$4.4 million from June 30, 2006 levels. Primarily in
response to customer programs and the timing of
shipments, inventory increases occurred in the
Lighting Segment of approximately $1.5 million
(some of this inventory supports certain graphics
programs and technology products) and the
Technology Segment of approximately $2.9 million
since June 30, 2006. The $3.1 million decrease in
accounts payable from June 30, 2006 to
June 30, 2007 is primarily related to flow of materials
in support of anticipated sales and production
volume.

Cash generated from operations and borrowing
capacity under two line of credit facilities are the
Company’s primary source of liquidity. The Company
has an unsecured $50 million revolving line of credit
with its bank group, with all $50 million of the credit
line available as of August 23, 2007. This line of
credit consists of a $30 million three year committed
credit facility expiring in fiscal 2010 and a $20 million
credit facility expiring in the third quarter of fiscal
2008. Additionally, in January 2007 the Company
established a separate $7 million annually renewable
line of credit for the working capital needs of its
Canadian subsidiary, LSI Saco Technologies. The
Company believes that the total of available lines of
credit plus cash flows from operating activities is
adequate for the Company’s fiscal 2008 operational
and capital expenditure needs. The Company is in
compliance with all of its loan covenants.

The Company used $10.3 million of cash related
to investing activities in fiscal 2007 as compared to a
use of $25.7 million last year. The primary change
between years relates to the fiscal 2006 acquisition
of SACO Technologies ($21.9 million favorable),
increased purchase of fixed assets ($2.2 million

unfavorable), increased proceeds from the sale of
fixed assets ($3.7 million favorable, primarily as two
significant rental LED video screens in the Technology
Segment were sold), and the fiscal 2006 purchase of
$9.0 million and divesture of short-term investments
and fiscal 2007 purchase of $8.0 million of short-term
investments ($8.0 million use of funds). Capital
expenditures of $6.0 million in fiscal 2007 (includes
approximately $1.8 million for a Salvagnini metal
fabrication center that will increase both our
fabrication capacity and productivity) compared to
$3.8 million last year. Spending in both periods is
primarily for tooling and equipment. The Company
expects fiscal 2008 capital expenditures to be in the
$9 million range, exclusive of business acquisitions.

The Company used $27.3 million of cash related
to financing activities in fiscal 2007 as compared to a
generation of $0.2 million last year. The $27.5 million
change between years is primarily the result of
activities with the Company’s line of credit ($26.0 million
unfavorable). Fiscal 2007 was a year in which all debt
was paid off, including debt of an acquired company,
and fiscal 2006 was a year of net borrowings,
including debt of an acquired company. Cash dividend
payments of $11.0 million in fiscal 2007 were less than
cash dividend payments of $11.2 million last year. The
change between years relates to the fiscal 2005 special
year-end dividend of approximately $2.0 million paid
in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, partially offset by a
higher per share dividend rate and an increased
number of outstanding shares in fiscal 2007 for the
regular quarterly cash dividend. Additionally, the
Company experienced less cash flow from the exercise
of stock options in fiscal 2007 as compared to last year
(unfavorable $1.5 million).
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The Company has financial instruments
consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments, revolving lines of credit, and
long-term debt. The fair value of these financial
instruments approximates carrying value because of
their short-term maturity and/or variable, market-
driven interest rates. The Company has no financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk and has no off
balance sheet arrangements.

On August 22, 2007 the Board of Directors declared
a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.13 per share
(approximately $2,794,000), as well as a special year-end
cash dividend of $0.05 per share (approximately
$1,075,000), both payable September 11, 2007 to
shareholders of record on September 4, 2007. The
declaration and amount of dividends will be determined
by the Company’s Board of Directors, in its discretion,
based upon its evaluation of earnings, cash flow, capital
requirements and future business developments and
opportunities, including acquisitions.

Carefully selected acquisitions have long been an
important part of the Company’s strategic growth
plans. The Company continues to seek out, screen and
evaluate potential acquisitions that could add to the
Lighting, Graphics or Technology product lines or
enhance the Company’s position in selected markets.

The Company believes adequate financing for any such
investments or acquisitions will be available through
future borrowings or through the issuance of common
or preferred shares in payment for acquired businesses.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company is required to make estimates and
judgments in the preparation of its financial
statements that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
footnote disclosures. The Company bases its estimates
on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities. The Company continually reviews
these estimates and their underlying assumptions to
ensure they remain appropriate. The Company
believes the items discussed below are among its most
significant accounting policies because they utilize
estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain and therefore are based on
management’s judgment. Significant changes in the
estimates or assumptions related to any of the
following critical accounting policies could possibly
have a material impact on the financial statements.

Contractual Obligations as of 
June 30, 2007 Payments due by period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years

Long-Term Debt Obligations $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

Capital Lease Obligations — — — — —

Operating Lease Obligations 3,186 1,619 1,279 288 —

Purchase Obligations 14,721 14,677 44 — —

Other Long-Term Liabilities — — — — —_________ _________ _________ _________ _________

Total $17,907 $16,296 $  1,323 $ 288 $ —_________ _________ _________ _________ __________________ _________ _________ _________ _________
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance
with Securities Exchange Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” Revenue is
recognized when title to goods and risk of loss have
passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of
a purchase arrangement, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Revenue is typically recognized at
time of shipment. Sales are recorded net of estimated
returns, rebates and discounts. Amounts received from
customers prior to the recognition of revenue are
accounted for as customer pre-payments and are
included in accrued expenses. Revenue is recognized
in accordance with EITF 00-21.

The Company has four sources of revenue:
revenue from product sales; revenue from installation
of products; service revenue generated from providing
integrated design, project and construction
management, site engineering and site permitting;
and revenue from shipping and handling. Product
revenue is recognized on product-only orders at the
time of shipment. Product revenue related to orders
where the customer requires the Company to install
the product is generally recognized when the product
is installed. In some situations, product revenue is
recognized when the product is shipped, before it is
installed, because by agreement the customer has
taken title to and risk of ownership for the product
before installation has been completed. Other than
normal product warranties or the possibility of
installation or post-shipment service and maintenance
of certain solid state LED video screens or billboards,
the Company has no post-shipment responsibilities.
Installation revenue is recognized when the products
have been fully installed. The Company is not always
responsible for installation of products it sells and has
no post-installation responsibilities, other than normal
warranties. Service revenue from integrated design,

project and construction management, and site
permitting is recognized at the completion of the
contract with the customer. With larger customer
contracts involving multiple sites, the customer may
require progress billings for completion of identifiable,
time-phased elements of the work, in which case
revenue is recognized at the time of the progress billing
which coincides with the completion of the earnings
process. Post-shipment service and maintenance revenue,
if applicable, related to solid state LED video screens or
billboards is recognized according to terms defined in
each individual service agreement and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principals. Shipping
and handling revenue coincides with the recognition of
revenue from sale of the product.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes;” accordingly, deferred income taxes are
provided on items that are reported as either income
or expense in different time periods for financial
reporting purposes than they are for income tax
purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are reported on the Company’s balance sheet.
Significant management judgment is required in
developing the Company’s income tax provision,
including the determination of deferred tax assets
and liabilities and any valuation allowances that
might be required against deferred tax assets.

The Company operates in multiple taxing
jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions.
The Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities
routinely review the Company’s tax returns. These
audits can involve complex issues which may require an
extended period of time to resolve. In management’s
opinion, adequate provision has been made for
potential adjustments arising from these examinations.
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As of June 30, 2007 the Company had recorded
two deferred state income tax assets, one in the
amount of $22,000 related to a state net operating
loss carryover generated by the Company’s New York
subsidiary, and the other in the amount of $938,000,
net of federal tax benefits, related to non-refundable
state tax credits. The Company has determined that
these deferred state income tax assets totaling
$960,000 do not require any valuation reserves
because, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS No. 109), these
assets will, more likely than not, be realized. As of
June 30, 2006, the Company had recorded a total of
$1,606,000 deferred state income tax assets and had
determined that a $622,000 valuation reserve, in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, was required as of that
date because a portion of those assets would, more
likely than not, not be realized the Company. An
additional deferred New York state income tax asset
related to non-refundable state tax credits was recorded
in fiscal 2007, and both the deferred state income tax
asset and the valuation reserve were reduced in fiscal
2007 as a result of a reorganization of subsidiaries by
the Company, and an unfavorable change in New York
state tax law. The fiscal 2007 activity netted to an
additional $249,000 of state income tax expense.

Equity Compensation

The Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment,” effective July 1, 2005. SFAS No. 123(R) requires
public entities to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
and recognize this cost over the period during which an
employee is required to provide the services.

Asset Impairment

Carrying values of goodwill and other intangible
assets with indefinite lives are reviewed at least
annually for possible impairment in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142
(SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” The Company’s impairment review involves
the estimation of the fair value of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets using a discounted
cash flow approach, at the reporting unit level, that
requires significant management judgment with
respect to revenue and expense growth rates, changes
in working capital and the selection and use of an
appropriate discount rate. The estimates of fair value
of reporting units are based on the best information
available as of the date of the assessment. The use of
different assumptions would increase or decrease
estimated discounted future operating cash flows and
could increase or decrease an impairment charge.
Company management uses its judgment in assessing
whether assets may have become impaired between
annual impairment tests. Indicators such as adverse
business conditions, economic factors and
technological change or competitive activities may
signal that an asset has become impaired. The
Company’s annual analysis and test for impairment of
goodwill was conducted as of July 1, 2006. There were
no impairment charges related to goodwill recorded
by the Company during 2007 or 2006, and there was a
$186,000 impairment charge recorded in 2005.

Carrying values for long-lived tangible assets and
definite-lived intangible assets, excluding goodwill,
are reviewed for possible impairment as circumstances
warrant in connection with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144 (SFAS No. 144),
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” Impairment reviews are conducted at
the judgment of Company management when it
believes that a change in circumstances in the business
or external factors warrants a review. Circumstances
such as the discontinuation of a product or product
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line, a sudden or consistent decline in the forecast
for a product, changes in technology or in the way
an asset is being used, a history of negative
operating cash flow, or an adverse change in legal
factors or in the business climate, among others, may
trigger an impairment review.  The Company’s initial
impairment review to determine if a potential
impairment charge is required is based on an
undiscounted cash flow analysis at the lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows exist. The analysis
requires judgment with respect to changes in
technology, the continued success of product lines
and future volume, revenue and expense growth
rates, and discount rates. There were no impairment
charges related to long-lived tangible assets or
definite-lived intangible assets recorded by the
Company during 2007, 2006, or 2005.

Credit and Collections

The Company maintains allowances for
doubtful accounts receivable for probable estimated
losses resulting from either customer disputes or the
inability of its customers to make required payments.
If the financial condition of the Company’s customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to
make the required payments, the Company may be
required to record additional allowances or charges
against income. The Company determines its
allowance for doubtful accounts by first considering
all known collectibility problems of customers’
accounts, and then applying certain percentages
against the various aging categories of the
remaining receivables. The resulting allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable is an estimate based
upon the Company’s knowledge of its business and
customer base, and historical trends. The Company
also establishes allowances, at the time revenue is
recognized, for returns and allowances, discounts,
pricing and other possible customer deductions.
These allowances are based upon historical trends.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48
provides guidance for the recognition, measurement,
classification and disclosure of the financial statement
effects of a position taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return (“tax position”). The financial statement
effects of a tax position must be recognized when
there is a likelihood of more than 50 percent that
based on the technical merits, the position will be
sustained upon examination and resolution of the
related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax
position that meets the recognition threshold must be
measured initially and subsequently as the largest
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with
a taxing authority. In addition, FIN 48 specifies certain
annual disclosures that are required to be made once
the interpretation has taken effect. The Interpretation
is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The cumulative effect of FIN 48
adoption will be reported as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at July 1, 2007.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting FIN 48, and estimates that a liability net of
taxes in the range of $2.4 million to $3.1 million will
be recorded as of July 1, 2007. The Company estimates
adoption of FIN 48 will not result in a material impact
on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or
financial position.
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In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements.” This Statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, or the Company’s
fiscal year 2009. The Company will be evaluating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currently
estimate the impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans.” This Statement improves
financial reporting by requiring an employer to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or
liability in its statement of financial position and to
recognize changes in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive
income. This Statement also improves financial
reporting by requiring an employer to measure the
funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end
statement of financial position, with limited
exceptions. The effective date to initially recognize
the funded status and to provide the required

disclosures is for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006, or the Company’s fiscal year 2007.
SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan
assets and benefit obligations for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008, or the Company’s fiscal year
2009. The Company has adopted the disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 158 and as such, did not have a
significant impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.”
This statement permits entities to choose to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value. The election is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and is irrevocable. If the fair value
option is elected for an instrument, SFAS No. 159
specifies that all subsequent changes in fair value for
that instrument shall be reported in earnings. The
objective of the pronouncement is to improve
financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. This statement is effective as of
the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that
begins after November 15, 2007, or in the Company’s
case, July 1, 2008. The Company is evaluating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 and cannot currently
estimate the impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.
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For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005
(In thousands, except per share)

2007 2006 2005

Net sales $337,453 $280,470 $282,440

Cost of products and services sold 248,274 209,057 210,144__________ __________ __________

Gross profit 89,179 71,413 72,296

Selling and administrative expenses 56,629 49,898 49,084

Goodwill impairment — — 186__________ __________ __________

Operating income 32,550 21,515 23,026

Interest (income) (139) (550) (64)

Interest expense 962 78 217__________ __________ __________

Income before income taxes 31,727 21,987 22,873
Income tax expense 10,938 7,544 8,237__________ __________ __________

Net income $ 20,789 $  14,443 $ 14,636__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Earnings per common share 

Basic $      0.96 $ 0.72 $ 0.74__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Diluted $      0.95 $ 0.71 $ 0.73__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS LSI INDUSTRIES INC.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2007 and 2006
(In thousands, except shares)

2007 2006

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,731 $ 3,322

Short-term investments 8,000 —

Accounts receivable, less allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $822 and $656, respectively 55,750 51,557

Inventories 49,731 45,345

Refundable income taxes 364 139

Other current assets 6,782 6,725___________ ____________

Total current assets 123,358 107,088

Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost

Land 6,180 6,695

Buildings 32,920 32,630

Machinery and equipment 59,515 62,930

Construction in progress 2,232 229___________ ____________

100,847 102,484

Less accumulated depreciation (53,289) (50,121)___________ ____________

Net property, plant and equipment 47,558 52,363

Goodwill, net 42,200 59,802

Other Intangible Assets, net 19,166 3,751

Other Assets, net 1,330 1,397___________ ____________

Total assets $233,612 $224,401___________ _______________________ ____________

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS LSI INDUSTRIES INC.
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2007 2006

LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt $ — $ 22

Accounts payable 19,834 22,974

Accrued expenses 35,127 17,305___________ ____________

Total current liabilities 54,961 40,301

Long-Term Debt — 16,571

Deferred Income Taxes 2,175 2,065

Other Long-Term Liabilities 415 479

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred shares, without par value; 
Authorized 1,000,000 shares, none issued — —

Common shares, without par value;
Authorized 30,000,000 shares; 
Outstanding 21,493,327 and 21,462,490 shares, respectively 79,326 78,087

Retained earnings 96,735 86,898___________ ____________

Total shareholders’ equity 176,061 164,985___________ ____________

Total liabilities & shareholders’ equity $233,612 $224,401___________ _______________________ ____________
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005
(In thousands, except per share)

Common Shares

Number of Retained

Shares Amount Earnings Total

Balance at June 30, 2004 19,734 $53,059 $75,804 $128,863

Net income — — 14,636 14,636

Stock compensation awards 4 55 — 55

Sale of treasury shares, net 19 208 — 208

Deferred stock compensation — (71) — (71)

Stock options exercised, net 113 1,154 — 1,154

Dividends - $0.372 per share — — (6,805) (6,805)_________ ____________ ____________ ______________

Balance at June 30, 2005 19,870 54,405 83,635 138,040

Net income — — 14,443 14,443

Stock compensation awards 2 41 — 41

Purchase of treasury shares, net (2) (111) — (111)

Deferred stock compensation — 903 — 903

Stock option expense — 428 — 428

Stock options exercised, net 173 2,039 — 2,039

Common shares issued for acquisition 1,419 20,382 — 20,382

Dividends - $0.56 per share — — (11,180) (11,180)_________ ____________ ____________ ______________

Balance at June 30, 2006 21,462 78,087 86,898 164,985

Net income — — 20,789 20,789

Stock compensation awards 3 44 — 44

Purchase of treasury shares, net (16) (292) — (292)

Deferred stock compensation — 229 — 229

Stock options expense — 721 — 721

Stock options exercised, net 44 537 — 537

Dividends - $0.51 per share — — (10,952) (10,952)_________ ____________ ____________ ______________

Balance at June 30, 2007 21,493 $79,326 $96,735 $176,061_________ ____________ ____________ _______________________ ____________ ____________ ______________

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY LSI INDUSTRIES INC.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005
(In thousands)

2007 2006 2005

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income $20,789 $14,443 $ 14,636

Non-cash items included in net income
Depreciation and amortization 9,002 6,773 6,974
Deferred income taxes 545 569 (178)
Deferred compensation plan 229 903 (71)
Stock option expense 721 428 —
Issuance of common shares as compensation 44 41 55
(Gain) loss on disposition of fixed assets 245 (47) 54
Goodwill Impairment — — 186
Allowance for doubtful accounts 166 (460) (148)
Inventory obsolescence reserve 22 21 132

Change (excluding effects of acquisitions) in
Accounts receivable, gross (4,359) 867 (4,033)
Inventories, gross (4,408) (1,976) 8,088
Refundable income taxes (225) (139) 516
Accounts payable (3,140) 4,901 (2,482)
Accrued expenses and other 17,333 (4,697) 3,753

__________ __________ ___________

Net cash flows from operating activities 36,964 21,627 27,482__________ __________ ___________

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (5,960) (3,754) (3,630)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3,846 116 150
Purchase of short-term investment (8,000) (9,000) —
Proceeds from sale of short-term investment — 9,000 —
Acquisition of a business, net cash received (141) (22,043) —__________ __________ ___________

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (10,255) (25,681) (3,480)__________ __________ ___________

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 9,881 16,528 3,460
Payment of long-term debt (26,474) (7,110) (15,014)
Cash dividends paid (10,952) (11,180) (6,805)
Exercise of stock options 537 2,039 1,154
Sale of treasury shares 15 262 389
Purchase of treasury shares (307) (373) (181)__________ __________ ___________

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (27,300) 166 (16,997)__________ __________ ___________

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (591) (3,888) 7,005

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,322 7,210 205__________ __________ ___________

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  2,731 $  3,322 $ 7,210__________ __________ _____________________ __________ ___________

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS LSI INDUSTRIES INC.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of LSI Industries Inc. (an Ohio
corporation) and its subsidiaries, all of which are
wholly owned. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance
with Securities Exchange Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” Revenue is
recognized when title to goods and risk of loss have
passed to the customer, there is persuasive evidence of
a purchase arrangement, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Revenue is typically recognized at
time of shipment. Sales are recorded net of estimated
returns, rebates and discounts. Amounts received from
customers prior to the recognition of revenue are
accounted for as customer pre-payments and are
included in accrued expenses. Revenue is recognized
in accordance with EITF 00-21.

The Company has four sources of revenue:
revenue from product sales; revenue from installation
of products; service revenue generated from providing
integrated design, project and construction
management, site engineering and site permitting;
and revenue from shipping and handling.

Product revenue is recognized on product-only
orders at the time of shipment. Product revenue
related to orders where the customer requires the
Company to install the product is generally recognized
when the product is installed. In some situations,
product revenue is recognized when the product is
shipped, before it is installed, because by agreement
the customer has taken title to and risk of ownership
for the product before installation has been
completed. Other than normal product warranties or
the possibility of installation or post-shipment service

and maintenance of certain solid state LED video
screens or billboards, the Company has no post-
shipment responsibilities.

Installation revenue is recognized when the
products have been fully installed. The Company is not
always responsible for installation of products it sells
and has no post-installation responsibilities, other
than normal warranties.

Service revenue from integrated design, project
and construction management, and site permitting is
recognized at the completion of the contract with the
customer. With larger customer contracts involving
multiple sites, the customer may require progress
billings for completion of identifiable, time-phased
elements of the work, in which case revenue is
recognized at the time of the progress billing which
coincides with the completion of the earnings process.
Post-shipment service and maintenance revenue, if
applicable, related to solid state LED video screens or
billboards is recognized according to terms defined in
each individual service agreement and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Shipping and handling revenue coincides with
the recognition of revenue from sale of the product.

Credit and Collections:

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful
accounts receivable for probable estimated losses
resulting from either customer disputes or the
inability of its customers to make required payments.
If the financial condition of the Company’s customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to
make the required payments, the Company may be
required to record additional allowances or charges
against income. The Company determines its
allowance for doubtful accounts by first considering
all known collectibility problems of customers’
accounts, and then applying certain percentages
against the various aging categories of the remaining
receivables. The resulting allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable is an estimate based upon the
Company’s knowledge of its business and customer

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS LSI INDUSTRIES INC.
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base, and historical trends. The Company also
establishes allowances, at the time revenue is
recognized, for returns and allowances, discounts,
pricing and other possible customer deductions. These
allowances are based upon historical trends.

The following table presents the Company’s net
accounts receivable at the dates indicated.

(In thousands) 6/30/07 6/30/06

Accounts receivable $56,572 $52,213
less Allowance for
doubtful accounts (822) (656)_________ _________

Accounts receivable, net $55,750 $51,557_________ __________________ _________

Facilities Expansion Tax Incentives and Credits:

The Company periodically receives either tax
incentives or credits for state income taxes when it
expands a facility and/or its level of employment in
certain states within which it operates. A tax incentive
is amortized to income over the time period that the
state could be entitled to return of the grant if the
expansion or job growth were not maintained, and is
recorded as a reduction of either manufacturing
overhead or administrative expenses. A credit is
amortized to income over the time period that the
state could be entitled to return of the credit if the
expansion were not maintained, is recorded as a
reduction of state income tax expense, and is subject to
a valuation allowance review if the credit cannot
immediately be utilized.

Short-Term Investments:

Short-term investments consist of tax free
(federal) investments in high grade government
agency backed bonds for which the interest rate resets
weekly and the Company has a seven day put option.
These investments are classified as available-for-sale
securities and are stated at fair market value, which
represents the most recent reset amount at period
end. The Company invested in these types of short-
term investments for a certain period of time during
fiscal 2006 and in the fourth quarter of FY 2007.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The cash balance includes cash and cash
equivalents which have original maturities of less than
three months. At June 30, 2007 and 2006 the bank
balances included $2,421,000 and $874,000,
respectively, in excess of FDIC insurance limits.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Related
Depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.
Major additions and betterments are capitalized while
maintenance and repairs are expensed. For financial
reporting purposes, depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Buildings 31 – 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3 – 10 years
Computer software 3 – 8 years

Costs related to the purchase, internal
development, and implementation of the Company’s
fully integrated enterprise resource planning/business
operating software system are either capitalized or
expensed in accordance with the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position
98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” The current
business operating software was first implemented in
January 2000. All costs capitalized for the business
operating software are being depreciated over an
eight year life from the date placed in service. Other
purchased computer software is being depreciated
over periods ranging from three to five years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of fifteen years or the remaining term of the
lease. The Company recorded $6,674,000, $6,294,000,
and $6,494,000 of depreciation expense in the years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets consisting of customer
relationships, trade names and trademarks, patents,
technology and software, and non-compete
agreements are recorded on the Company’s balance
sheet and are being amortized to expense over
periods ranging between two and forty years. The
excess of cost over fair value of assets acquired
(“goodwill”) is not amortized but is subject to review
for impairment. See additional information about
goodwill and intangibles in Note 6. The Company
periodically evaluates intangible assets, goodwill and
other long-lived assets for permanent impairment.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company has financial instruments
consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments, revolving lines of credit, and
long-term debt. The fair value of these financial
instruments approximates carrying value because of
their short-term maturity and/or variable, market-
driven interest rates. The Company has no financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk.

Product Warranties:

The Company offers a limited warranty that its
products are free of defects in workmanship and
materials. The specific terms and conditions vary
somewhat by product line, but generally cover defects
returned within one to five years from date of
shipment. The Company records warranty liabilities to
cover the estimated future costs for repair or
replacement of defective returned products as well as
products that need to be repaired or replaced in the
field after installation. The Company calculates its
liability for warranty claims by applying estimates to
cover unknown claims, as well as estimating the total
amount to be incurred for known warranty issues. The
Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its
recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts
as necessary.

Changes in the Company’s warranty liabilities,
which are included in accrued expenses in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, during the
years ended June 30 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Balance at beginning
of the year $ 378 $     301

Additions charged to expense 1,172 584
Deductions for repairs

and replacements (1,236) (507)_________ _________

Balance at end of the year $ 314 $     378_________ __________________ _________

Contingencies:

The Company is party to various negotiations,
customer bankruptcies, and legal proceedings arising
in the normal course of business. The Company
provides reserves for these matters when a loss is
probable and reasonably estimable. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations,
cash flows or liquidity. See also Note 13.

Employee Benefit Plans:

The Company has a defined contribution
retirement plan and a discretionary profit sharing plan
covering substantially all of its non-union employees
in the United States, and a non-qualified deferred
compensation plan covering certain employees. The
costs of employee benefit plans are charged to
expense and funded annually. Total costs were
$2,064,000 in 2007, $2,127,000 in 2006, and
$1,864,000 in 2005. Additionally, non-cash expenses of
$573,000 and $775,000 were recorded in fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005, respectively, in accordance with
variable accounting procedures related to the
deferred compensation plan.
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Research and Development Costs:

Research and development expenses are costs
directly attributable to new product development and
consist of salaries, payroll taxes, employee benefits,
materials, supplies, depreciation and other administrative
costs. All costs are expensed as incurred and are classified
as operating expenses. Research and development costs
incurred total $2,592,000 for fiscal 2007, $1,304,000 for
fiscal 2006 and $1,183,000 for fiscal 2005.

Advertising Expense:

The Company recorded $556,000, $509,000, and
$838,000 of advertising expense in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. Advertising costs are expensed the
first time the advertising occurs. Expense related to
printed product or capabilities literature, brochures,
etc. is recorded on a ratable basis over the useful life of
that printed media.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109 (SFAS No. 109); accordingly,
deferred income taxes are provided on items that are
reported as either income or expense in different time
periods for financial reporting purposes than they are
for income tax purposes. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are reported on the Company’s balance
sheet. See also Note 11.

Earnings Per Common Share:

The computation of basic earnings per common
share is based on the weighted average common
shares outstanding for the period net of treasury
shares held in the Company’s non-qualified deferred
compensation plan. The computation of diluted
earnings per share is based on the weighted average
common shares outstanding for the period and
includes common share equivalents. Common share
equivalents include the dilutive effect of stock
options, contingently issuable shares (for which
issuance has been determined to be probable), and

common shares to be issued under a deferred
compensation plan, all of which totaled 448,000
shares in 2007, 431,000 shares in 2006 and 305,000
shares in 2005. See also Note 4.

Stock Options:

The Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment,” effective July 1, 2005. SFAS No. 123(R)
requires public entities to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award
of equity instruments and recognize this cost over the
period during which an employee is required to
provide the services. The Company has adopted SFAS
No. 123(R) using the “modified prospective
application” as defined in the Statement, and
therefore financial statements from periods ended
prior to July 1, 2005 have not been retroactively
adjusted. As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on
July 1, 2005, the Company’s income before income
taxes and net income for fiscal 2006 are lower by
$428,000 and $281,000, respectively, than if it had
continued to account for share-based compensation
under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB
No. 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”

The Company recorded $115,200 in fiscal 2007 as
a reduction of federal income taxes payable, $104,950
as an increase in common stock, and $10,250 as a
reduction of income tax expense to reflect the tax
credits it will receive as a result of disqualifying
dispositions of shares from stock option exercises. This
had the effect of reducing cash flow from operating
activities and increasing cash flow from financing
activities by $104,950. The Company recorded
$433,400 in fiscal 2006 as a reduction of federal
income taxes payable, $425,300 as an increase in
common stock, and $8,100 as a reduction of income
tax expense to reflect the tax credits it will receive as a
result of disqualifying dispositions of shares from
stock option exercises. This had the effect of reducing
cash flow from operating activities and increasing cash
flow from financing activities by $425,300. See further
discussion in Note 9.
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Prior to July 1, 2005, the Company applied the
provisions of APB No. 25. Accordingly, no
compensation expense was reflected in the financial
statements as the exercise price of options granted to
employees and non-employee directors equaled the
fair market value of the Company’s common shares on
the date of grant. The Company had adopted the
disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation.”

If the Company had adopted the expense
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 prior to
July 1, 2005, net income and earnings per share for
fiscal year 2005 would have been as follows:

(In thousands except earnings per share) 2005

Net income as reported $14,636

Add: Stock-based compensation
expense included in reported net
income, net of related tax effects 35

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation 
determined under the fair value
based method for all awards,
net of tax effects (452)____________

Pro forma net income $14,219________________________

Earnings per common share 
Basic

As reported $    0.74
Pro forma $    0.72

Diluted
As reported $    0.73
Pro forma $    0.71

Recent Pronouncements:

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48
provides guidance for the recognition, measurement,
classification and disclosure of the financial statement
effects of a position taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return (“tax position”). The financial statement

effects of a tax position must be recognized when
there is a likelihood of more than 50 percent that
based on the technical merits, the position will be
sustained upon examination and resolution of the
related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax
position that meets the recognition threshold must be
measured initially and subsequently as the largest
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with
a taxing authority. In addition, FIN 48 specifies certain
annual disclosures that are required to be made once
the interpretation has taken effect. The Interpretation
is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The cumulative effect of FIN 48
adoption will be reported as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at July 1, 2007.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting FIN 48, and estimates that a liability net of
taxes in the range of $2.4 million to $3.1 million will
be recorded as of July 1, 2007. The Company estimates
adoption of FIN 48 will not result in a material impact
on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements.” This Statement defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007, or the
Company’s fiscal year 2009. The Company will be
evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and
cannot currently estimate the impact on its consolidated
results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans.” This Statement improves
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financial reporting by requiring an employer to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or
liability in its statement of financial position and to
recognize changes in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive
income. This Statement also improves financial
reporting by requiring an employer to measure the
funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end
statement of financial position, with limited
exceptions. The effective date to initially recognize
the funded status and to provide the required
disclosures is for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2006, or the Company’s fiscal year 2007.
SFAS No. 158 requires companies to measure plan
assets and benefit obligations for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008, or the Company’s fiscal year
2009. The Company has adopted the disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 158 and as such, did not have a
significant impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.”
This statement permits entities to choose to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value. The election is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and is irrevocable. If the fair value
option is elected for an instrument, SFAS No. 159
specifies that all subsequent changes in fair value for
that instrument shall be reported in earnings. The
objective of the pronouncement is to improve
financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. This statement is effective as of
the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that
begins after November 15, 2007, or in the Company’s
case, July 1, 2008. The Company is evaluating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 and cannot currently
estimate the impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

Comprehensive Income:

The Company does not have any comprehensive
income items, other than net income.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications may have been made to
prior year amounts in order to be consistent with the
presentation for the current year, including the
presentation of changes in non-cash items, specifically
the allowance for doubtful accounts and the inventory
obsolescence reserve, within the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in the following three
business segments: the Lighting Segment, the
Graphics Segment, and the Technology Segment. The
Company is organized such that the chief operating
decision maker (the President and Chief Executive
Officer) receives financial and operating information
relative to these three business segments, and
organizationally, has a President of LSI Lighting
Solutions Plus, a President of LSI Graphics Solutions
Plus, and a President of LSI Technology Solutions Plus
reporting directly to him. The Company’s most
significant market is the petroleum/convenience store
market with approximately 26%, 25%, and 25% of
total net sales concentrated in this market in fiscal
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The following
information is provided for the following periods:
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(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Net sales:
Lighting Segment $196,533 $195,805 $177,021
Graphics Segment 123,788 83,418 105,419
Technology Segment 17,132 1,247 —__________ __________ __________

$337,453 $280,470 $282,440__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Operating income:
Lighting Segment $  13,453 $ 13,641 $ 9,088
Graphics Segment 17,434 7,879 13,938
Technology Segment 1,663 (5) —__________ __________ __________

$  32,550 $ 21,515 $ 23,026__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Identifiable assets:
Lighting Segment $100,811 $103,852 $102,831
Graphics Segment 67,427 61,767 61,883
Technology Segment 41,535 54,544 —__________ __________ __________

209,773 220,163 164,714
Corporate 23,839 4,238 7,923__________ __________ __________

$233,612 $224,401 $172,637__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Capital expenditures:
Lighting Segment $ 4,243 $ 2,262 $ 3,048
Graphics Segment 987 1,492 582
Technology Segment 730 — —__________ __________ __________

$ 5,960 $ 3,754 $ 3,630__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Depreciation and amortization:
Lighting Segment $ 5,514 $ 5,125 $ 5,095
Graphics Segment 2,795 1,635 1,879
Technology Segment 693 13 —__________ __________ __________

$ 9,002 $ 6,773 $ 6,974__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Operating income of the business segments
includes net sales less all operating expenses, including
allocations of corporate expense but, excluding
interest expense. The table above does not include any
intercompany sales between business segments.

Identifiable assets are those assets used by each
segment in its operations, including allocations of
shared assets. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments,

refundable income taxes, and certain intangible assets.
The Company considers its geographic areas to

be: 1) the United States, and 2) Foreign. The majority
of the Company’s operations are in the United States;
one operation is in Canada. The geographic
distribution of the Company’s net sales and long-lived
assets are as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Net sales:
United States $320,321 $279,223 $282,440
Foreign 17,132 1,247 —___________ _____________ _____________

$337,453 $280,470 $282,440___________ _____________ ________________________ _____________ _____________

Long-lived assests:
United States $  80,672 $  70,753 $ 73,833
Foreign 29,582 46,560 —___________ _____________ _____________

$110,254 $117,313 $ 73,833___________ _____________ ________________________ _____________ _____________

(A) Net sales are attributed to geographic areas based
upon the location of the operation making the sale.

(B) Long-lived assets includes property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, and other
long term assets. As part of the purchase
accounting entry related to the acquisition of
SACO Technologies, Inc., certain long-lived assets
were transferred from the Company’s foreign
operation into its operations in the United States.

NOTE 3 - MAJOR CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s net sales to a major customer in
the Lighting Segment, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.,
represented approximately $30,443,000 or 11% and
$30,197,000 or 11% of consolidated net sales in fiscal
years 2006 and 2005, respectively. There are no sales
to major customers in fiscal year 2007 that
represented a sales concentration. The Company had
a concentration of receivables with 7-Eleven, Inc.
totaling $7,668,000 or about 14% of total net
accounts receivable as of June 30, 2007.
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NOTE 4 - EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 

The following table presents the amounts used
to compute earnings per common share and the effect
of dilutive potential common shares on net income
and weighted average shares outstanding:

(In thousands, except per share) 2007 2006 2005

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income $20,789 $14,443 $14,636__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Weighted average 
shares outstanding
during the period, net
of treasury shares (A) 21,676 20,194 19,782__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Basic earnings per share $ 0.96 $ 0.72 $ 0.74__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income $20,789 $14,443 $14,636__________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________

Weighted average 
shares outstanding
during the period,
net of treasury shares 21,676 20,194 19,782

Effect of dilutive 
securities (B):
Impact of common 
shares to be issued 
under stock option 
plans, and contingently
issuable shares, if any 248 235 305__________ __________ ____________

Weighted average 
shares outstanding (C) 21,924 20,429 20,087__________ __________ ______________________ __________ ____________

Diluted earnings (loss)
per share $ 0.95 $ 0.71 $ 0.73__________ __________ ______________________ __________ ____________

(A) Includes shares accounted for like treasury stock in
accordance with EITF 97-14.

(B) Calculated using the “Treasury Stock” method as if
dilutive securities were exercised and the funds
were used to purchase common shares at the
average market price during the period.

(C) Options to purchase 206,261 common shares, 3,748
common shares, and 227,851 common shares at
June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because the exercise price was greater than the
average fair market value of the common shares.

NOTE 5 - BALANCE SHEET DATA

The following information is provided as of June 30:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Inventories:
Raw materials $23,111 $21,508
Work-in-process 8,211 7,402
Finished goods 18,409 16,435_________ _________

$49,731 $45,345_________ __________________ _________

Accrued Expenses:
Compensation and benefits $  8,837 $ 6,902
Customer prepayments 18,490 4,438
Accrued sales commissions 1,287 1,501
Other accrued expenses 6,513 4,464_________ __________

$35,127 $17,305_________ ___________________ __________

NOTE 6 - GOODWILL AND OTHER 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company completed its annual goodwill
impairment testing in fiscal 2007 as of July 1, 2006.
The Company determined that it had five reporting
units (of which three have goodwill). Based upon this
analysis, there was no impairment of goodwill. A
similar analysis was performed in fiscal 2006 and 2005
as of July 1, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As a result of
the fiscal 2006 analysis, it was determined there was
no impairment. As a result of the fiscal 2005 analysis,
there was full impairment of the recorded net
goodwill of one reporting unit in the Lighting
Segment. The impairment of $186,000, a non-cash
charge, was recorded as an operating expense in the
first quarter of fiscal 2005.

The Company acquired substantially all the net
assets of SACO Technologies, Inc. on June 26, 2006
(see Note 15). The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase, effective on the date of acquisition. As of
June 30, 2006, the total purchase exceeded the
estimated fair value of net assets by approximately
$42.8 million. A valuation of the Company’s goodwill
and intangible assets along with the purchase price
allocation was completed in fiscal year 2007, thereby
determining a value of $25,083,000 for goodwill and
$17,743,000 for identified intangible assets. Identified
intangible assets related to the LSI Saco Technologies
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acquisition are being amortized effective July 1, 2006 over appropriate asset lives. Goodwill and certain
intangible assets such as the Saco trade name, non-compete agreements and customer relationships are included
in the assets of the Technology Segment. Intangible assets such as the Smartvision® trade name, the LED
technology, firmware and software are included as corporate assets.

The following table presents information about the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets on the
dates or for the periods indicated.

As of June 30, 2007 As of June 30, 2006

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
(In thousands) Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Goodwill $44,585 $ 2,385 $42,200 $62,187 $ 2,385 $59,802__________ __________ __________ __________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Other Intangible Assets $24,173 $ 5,007 $19,166 $  6,430 $  2,679 $  3,751__________ __________ __________ __________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, by operating
segment, are as follows:

Lighting Graphics Technology
(In thousands) Segment Segment Segment Total

Balance as of June 30, 2004 $     321 $16,982 $ — $17,303
Impairment loss (186) — — (186)__________ __________ __________ __________

Balance as of June 30, 2005 135 16,982 — 17,117
Acquisition — — 42,685 42,685__________ __________ __________ __________

Balance as of June 30, 2006 135 16,982 42,685 59,802
Acquisition — — 141 141
Reclassification to intangible assets — — (17,743) (17,743)__________ __________ __________ __________

Balance as of June 30, 2007 $     135 $16,982 $25,083 $42,200__________ __________ __________ ____________________ __________ __________ __________

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization by major other intangible asset class is 
as follows:

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

(In thousands) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized Intangible Assets
Customer relationships $ 7,472 $3,068 $5,400 $2,513
Trademarks and tradenames 5,513 151 920 128
Patents 110 45 110 38
LED Technology firmware, software 10,448 1,493 — —
Non-compete agreements 630 250 — —_________ _________ _________ _________

$24,173 $5,007 $6,430 $2,679_________ _________ _________ __________________ _________ _________ _________

Aggregate amortization expense for other intangible assets was $2,328,000 in fiscal 2007, $479,000 in fiscal
2006, and $480,000 in fiscal 2005.

The Company expects to record amortization expense over each of the next five years as follows:
2008-$2,327,000; 2009 through 2011-$2,101,000; 2012-$2,102,000.
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NOTE 7 - REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT 
AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company has an unsecured $50 million
revolving line of credit with its bank group. As of
June 30, 2007, all $50 million of this line of credit was
available. A portion of this credit facility is a
$20 million line of credit that expires in the third
quarter of fiscal 2008. The remainder of the credit
facility is a $30 million three year committed line of
credit that expires in fiscal 2010. Annually in the third
quarter, the credit facility is renewable with respect to
adding an additional year of commitment to replace
the year just ended. Interest on the revolving lines of
credit is charged based upon an increment over the
LIBOR rate as periodically determined, an increment
over the Federal Funds Rate as periodically
determined, or at the bank’s base lending rate, at the
Company’s option. The increment over the LIBOR
borrowing rate, as periodically determined, fluctuates
between 50 and 75 basis points depending upon the
ratio of indebtedness to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA). The
increment over the Federal Funds borrowing rate, as
periodically determined, fluctuates between 150 and
200 basis points, and the commitment fee on the
unused balance of the $30 million committed portion
of the line of credit fluctuates between 15 and 25
basis points based upon the same leverage ratio.
Under terms of these agreements, the Company has
agreed to a negative pledge of assets, to maintain
minimum levels of profitability and net worth, and is
subject to certain maximum levels of leverage. The
Company is in compliance with all of its loan
covenants as of June 30, 2007.

The Company also established a $7 million line of
credit for its Canadian subsidiary. The line of credit
expires in the third quarter of fiscal 2008. Interest on
the Canadian subsidiary’s line of credit is charged
based upon an increment over the LIBOR rate or
based upon an increment over the United States base
rates if funds borrowed are denominated in U.S.
dollars or an increment over the Canadian prime rate
if funds borrowed are denominated in Canadian
dollars. There have been no borrowings against this
line of credit.

The Company had two equipment loans at
June 30, 2006 totaling $65,000 as a result of the
acquisition of Saco Technologies. These loans were
paid off in the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

(In thousands) 2006

Long-term debt:
Revolving Line of Credit 

(3 year committed line) $16,528
Equipment loans 65__________

Subtotal 16,593
Less current maturities of

long-term debt (22)__________

Long-term debt $16,571____________________

NOTE 8 - CASH DIVIDENDS

The Company paid cash dividends of $10,952,000,
$11,180,000 and $6,805,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006,
and 2005, respectively. In August 2007, the Company’s
Board of Directors declared a $0.13 per share regular
quarterly cash dividend (approximately $2,794,000) as
well as a $0.05 per share special year-end cash dividend
(approximately $1,075,000) payable on September 11, 2007
to shareholders of record September 4, 2007.

NOTE 9 - EQUITY COMPENSATION

On July 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No.
123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which requires the
Company to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments and to recognize this cost in the financial
statements over the period during which an employee
is required to provide services. The Company has
adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the “modified
prospective application” as defined in the Statement,
and therefore financial statements for periods ended
prior to July 1, 2005 have not been retroactively
adjusted. Prior to July 1, 2005, the Company had
applied provisions of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, (“Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees”) and recorded no compensation expense
in the financial statements. The Company adopted the
disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS No. 123),
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation.”
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Stock Options

The Company has an equity compensation plan
that was approved by shareholders which covers all of
its full-time employees, outside directors and advisors.
The options granted or stock awards made pursuant
to this plan are granted at fair market value at date of
grant or award. Options granted to non-employee
directors are immediately exercisable and options
granted to employees generally become exercisable
25% per year (cumulative) beginning one year after
the date of grant. The number of shares reserved for
issuance is 2,250,000, of which 1,574,328 shares were
available for future grant or award as of
June 30, 2007. This plan allows for the grant of
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted and unrestricted
stock awards, performance stock awards, and other
stock awards. As of June 30, 2007, a total of 983,788
options for common shares were outstanding from
this plan as well as two previous stock option plans
(both of which had also been approved by
shareholders), and of these, a total of 540,631 options
for common shares were vested and exercisable. The
approximate unvested stock option expense as of
June 30, 2007 that will be recorded as expense in
future periods is $1,610,000. The weighted average
time over which this expense will be recorded is
approximately 23 months.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123 (SFAS No. 123) was effective for the Company
through June 30, 2005 and required, at a minimum, pro
forma disclosures of expense for stock-based awards
based on their fair values. See Note 1 for this information.
The fair value of each option on the date of grant was
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The below listed weighted average assumptions were
used for grants in the periods indicated.

2007 2006 2005

Dividend yield 2.97% 3.42% 3.29%
Expected volatility 39% 40% 38%
Risk-free interest rate 4.8% 5.1% 3.3%
Expected life 61⁄2 yrs. 61⁄2 yrs. 8 yrs. 

At June 30, 2007, the 250,700 options granted
during fiscal 2007 to employees and non-employee
directors had exercise prices ranging from $13.83 to
$18.19, fair values ranging from $4.88 to $6.43 per
option, and remaining contractual lives of four years
to nearly ten years.

At June 30, 2006, the 51,800 options granted in
fiscal 2006 to non-employee directors had exercise
prices ranging from $14.36 to $17.02, fair values
ranging from $4.89 to $5.63, and remaining
contractual lives of approximately nine and one-half
to ten years.

At June 30, 2005, the 377,000 options granted in
fiscal 2005 to both employees and non-employee
directors had exercise prices ranging from $8.55 to
$10.71, fair values ranging from $3.50 to $4.26, and
remaining contractual lives of about nine years.

SFAS No. 123(R) requires stock option expense to
be recorded on the financial statements for all
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
Accordingly, expense of $721,000 and $428,000 was
recorded in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively. No
similar expense was recorded in fiscal 2005. No equity
compensation expense has been capitalized in
inventory or fixed assets. The Company records stock
option expense using a straight line Black-Scholes
method with an estimated 10% forfeiture rate. The
expected volatility of the Company’s stock was
calculated based upon the historic monthly
fluctuation in stock price for a period approximating
the expected life of option grants. The risk-free
interest rate is the rate of a five year Treasury security
at constant, fixed maturity on the approximate date
of the stock option grant. The expected life of
outstanding options is determined to be less than the
contractual term for a period equal to the aggregate
group of option holders’ estimated weighted average
time within which options will be exercised. It is the
Company’s policy that when stock options are
exercised, new common shares shall be issued. As of
June 30, 2007, the Company expects that approximately
398,800 outstanding stock options having a weighted
average exercise price of $14.40, weighted average
remaining contractual terms of 8.3 years and aggregate
intrinsic value of $1,396,900 will vest in the future.
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Information related to all stock options for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is shown in the
table below:

Twelve Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

(Shares in thousands) Shares Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at June 30, 2006 784 $10.32 $5,232,500________________________

Granted 251 $17.54
Forfeitures (5) $11.57
Exercised (46) $10.00____

Outstanding at June 30, 2007 984 $12.16 6.3 years $5,642,400____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

Exercisable at June 30, 2007 541 $10.33 4.7 years $4,090,400____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

Twelve Months Ended
June 30, 2006

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

(Shares in thousands) Shares Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at June 30, 2005 923 $  9.88 $3,748,400________________________

Granted 52 $14.74
Forfeitures (18) $10.25
Exercised (173) $  9.31____

Outstanding at June 30, 2006 784 $10.32 6.4 years $5,232,500____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

Exercisable at June 30, 2006 472 $10.11 5.0 years $3,248,600____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

Twelve Months Ended
June 30, 2005

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

(Shares in thousands) Shares Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at June 30, 2004 667 $ 9.73 $1,183,600________________________

Granted 377 $  9.97
Forfeitures (8) $11.57
Exercised (113) $  9.16____

Outstanding at June 30, 2005 923 $  9.88 6.6 years $3,748,400____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

Exercisable at June 30, 2005 520 $  9.63 5.0 years $2,241,700____ __________ ________________ __________ ____________

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$391,000, $1,306,000, and $370,000, respectively.
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The Company received $432,200 of cash and 1,827 common shares of the Company’s stock from employees
who exercised 46,119 options during the twelve months ended June 30, 2007. Additionally, the Company
recorded $115,200 in fiscal 2007 as a reduction of federal income taxes payable, $104,950 as an increase in
common stock, and $10,250 as a reduction of income tax expense related to the exercises of stock options in
which the employees sold the common shares prior to the passage of twelve months from the date of exercise.

Information related to unvested stock options for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007 is shown in the
table below:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

(Shares in thousands) Shares Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding unvested stock options at June 30, 2006 312 $10.62 8.5 years $1,983,900_________ _____________________ ____________

Vested (115) $ 9.50
Forfeitures (5) $11.57
Granted 251 $17.54____

Outstanding unvested stock options at June 30, 2007 443 $14.40 8.3 years $1,552,100____ _________ ________________ _________ ____________

Stock Compensation Awards

The Company awarded a total of 2,508 common
shares in fiscal 2007, valued at their approximate
$43,500 fair market value on the date of issuance
pursuant to the compensation programs for non-
employee Directors who receive a portion of their
compensation as an award of Company stock and
employees who receive a nominal stock award
following their twentieth employment anniversary.
Stock compensation awards are made in the form of
newly issued common shares of the Company.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a non-qualified deferred
compensation plan providing for both Company
contributions and participant deferrals of
compensation. The Plan is fully funded in a Rabbi
Trust. All Plan investments are in common shares of
the Company. As of June 30, 2007 there were 36
participants with fully vested account balances. A total
of 203,688 common shares with a cost of $2,249,400,
and 187,725 common shares with a cost of $1,957,500
were held in the Plan as of June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, respectively, and, accordingly, have
been recorded as treasury shares. The change in the
number of shares held by this plan is the net result of
share purchases and sales on the open stock market

for compensation deferred into the Plan and for
distributions to terminated employees. The Company
does not issue new common shares for purposes of
the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. The
Company accounts for assets held in the non-qualified
deferred compensation plan in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force 97-14, “Accounting for
Deferred Compensation Arrangements where
amounts earned are held in a Rabbi Trust and
invested.” As a result of the Company changing the
distribution method for this deferred compensation
plan in April 2004 from one of issuing shares of
Company stock to terminated participants to one of
issuing cash, it was determined that this plan was
subject to variable accounting. Therefore, the shares
in this plan were “marked-to-market” in the first
quarter of fiscal 2006 and a $573,000 non-cash
expense and long-term liability were recorded to
reflect the $16.82 per share market price of the
Company’s common shares at September 9, 2005, the
date this Plan was amended to provide for
distributions to participants only in the form of
common shares of the Company. Accordingly, no
future “mark-to-market” expense will be required
with respect to this plan. A similar expense of
$775,000 was recorded in fiscal 2005. For fiscal year
2008, the Company estimates the Rabbi Trust for the
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan will make
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net repurchases in the range of 20,000 to 25,000
common shares of the Company. During fiscal years 2007
and 2006, the Company used approximately $307,100
and $373,000, respectively, to purchase common shares
of the Company in the open stock market for either
employee salary deferrals or Company contributions into
the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. The
Company does not currently repurchase its own common
shares for any other purpose.

NOTE 10 - LEASES AND PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

The Company leases certain of its facilities and
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rental
expense was $2,779,000 in 2007, $2,241,000 in 2006, and
$2,342,000 in 2005. Minimum annual rental commitments
under non-cancelable operating leases are: $1,837,000 in
2008, $791,000 in 2009, $248,000 in 2010, $215,000 in
2011, and $95,000 in 2012. Purchase commitments of the
Company totaled $17,907,000 and $22,700,000 as of
June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 respectively.

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

The following information is provided for the
years ended June 30:

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Components of income
before income taxes:

United States $32,376 $21,992 $22,873
Foreign (649) (5) —________ _________ _________

Income before
income taxes $31,727 $21,987 $22,873________ _________ _________________ _________ _________

Provision (benefit) for 
income taxes:
Current U.S. federal $  9,898 $  6,831 $  6,851

State and local 495 451 778
Foreign — (1) —________ _________ _________

Total current 10,393 7,281 7,629
Deferred 545 263 608________ _________ _________

Total provision for
income taxes $10,938 $  7,544 $  8,237________ _________ _________________ _________ _________

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Reconciliation to 
federal statutory rate:

Federal statutory
tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local
taxes, net of
federal benefit 1.2 1.7 2.3

Impact of Foreign
Operations (1.0) — —

Federal and state
tax credits (1.5) (1.3) (0.3)

Goodwill and other 0.8 (1.1) (1.0)________ ________ ________

Effective tax rate 34.5% 34.3% 36.0%________ ________ ________________ ________ ________

The components of deferred income tax assets and
(liabilities) at June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Reserves against current assets $    387 $ 678
Accrued expenses 1,118 1,262
Depreciation (4,842) (5,078)
Goodwill, acquisition costs and

intangible assets 407 977
Deferred compensation 847 1,052
State net operating loss carryover 22 816
Income tax credits,

net of federal benefit 938 790
Valuation reserve — (622)
Foreign net operating loss

carryover and credits 453 —_________ ________

Net deferred income
tax (liability) $ (670) $ (125)_________ _________________ ________

Reconciliation to the balance sheets as of
June 30, 2007 and 2006:

(In thousands) 2007 2006

Deferred income tax asset 
(liability) included in:

Other current assets $ 1,505 $1,940
Long-term deferred income 

tax liability (2,175) (2,065)_________ _________

Net deferred income
tax (liability) $ (670) $ (125)_________ __________________ _________
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As of June 30, 2007 the Company had recorded
two deferred state income tax assets, one in the
amount of $22,000 related to a state net operating
loss carryover generated by the Company’s New York
subsidiary, and the other in the amount of $938,000,
net of federal tax benefits, related to non-refundable
state tax credits. The Company has determined that
these deferred state income tax assets totaling
$960,000 do not require any valuation reserves
because, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS No. 109), these
assets will, more likely than not, be realized. As of
June 30, 2006, the Company had recorded a total of
$1,606,000 deferred state income tax assets and had
determined that a $622,000 valuation reserve, in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, was required as of that
date because a portion of those assets would, more
likely than not, not be realized by the Company. An
additional deferred New York state income tax asset
related to non-refundable state tax credits was
recorded in fiscal 2007, and both the deferred state
income tax asset and the valuation reserve were
reduced in fiscal 2007 as a result of a reorganization
of subsidiaries by the Company, and an unfavorable
change in New York state tax law. The fiscal 2007
activity netted to an additional $249,000 of state
income tax expense.

NOTE 12 - SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Cash payments:
Interest $1,576 $  36 $ 257
Income taxes $9,439 $  6,916 $7,704

Issuance of common shares
as compensation $     44 $ 41 $ 55

Issuance of common shares
for an acquisition $ — $20,382 $ —

NOTE 13 - LOSS CONTINGENCY RESERVE 

The Company is party to various negotiations
and legal proceedings arising in the normal course of
business, most of which are dismissed or resolved with
minimal expense to the Company, exclusive of legal
fees. Since October of 2000, the Company has been
the defendant in a complex lawsuit alleging patent
infringement with respect to some of the Company’s

menu board systems sold over the past approximately
ten years. The Company has defended and will
continue to defend this case vigorously. The Company
made a reasonable settlement offer in the third
quarter of fiscal 2005 and, accordingly, recorded a loss
contingency reserve in the amount of $590,000. This
settlement offer was not accepted by the plaintiff and
the Company received a counter offer of $4.1 million
to settle the majority of the alleged patent infringement.
In March 2007, the Company received a favorable
summary judgment decision. As a result of the
favorable summary judgment decision, the loss
contingency reserve of $590,000 was written off to
income in the third quarter of fiscal 2007. The
plaintiffs in this lawsuit have appealed the summary
judgment decision. In what we believe the unlikely
event the plaintiffs are successful in this appeal, the
lawsuit would be back in progress.

NOTE 14 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has recorded expense for the
following related party transactions in the fiscal years
indicated (amounts in thousands):

(In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Keating Muething &
Klekamp PLL $222 $243 $215

American Engineering
and Metal Working $559 $700 $519

3970957 Canada Inc. $176 $  — $  —

As of the balance sheet date indicated, the
Company had the following liabilities recorded with
respect to related party transactions (amounts in
thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2007 2006

Keating Muething & 
Klekamp PLL $   34 $30 

American Engineering 
and Metal Working $103 $25

The law firm of Keating Muething & Klekamp
PLL, of which one of the Company’s independent
outside directors is a senior partner, is the Company’s
primary outside law firm providing legal services in
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most all areas required other than patents and
intellectual property. The manufacturing firm of
American Engineering and Metal Working, which is
owned and operated by the son of the president of
the Company’s Graphics Segment, provides metal
fabricated components. 3970957 Canada Inc., which is
owned by the president and another executive of the
Company’s Technology Segment, owns the building
that the Canadian operation occupies and rents. All
related parties provide the Company either products
or services at market-based arms-length prices.

NOTE 15 - ACQUISITION

The Company acquired substantially all the net
assets of SACO Technologies, Inc. on June 26, 2006,
which it renamed LSI Saco Technologies. The purchase
price was $45.1 million, consisting of $23.2 million in
cash, 1,419,355 common shares of LSI Industries
valued at $20.4 million (at $14.36 per share, the
closing price on the date of acquisition), and
approximately $1.3 million in transaction costs, which
primarily consisted of financial advisory, legal and
accounting services, and bank debt prepayment fees.
The new subsidiary operates in Montreal, Canada as a
worldwide leader and pioneer in the design,
production, and support of high-performance light
engines and large format video screens using LED
(light emitting diode) technology. LSI Saco
Technologies will offer its customers expertise in
developing and utilizing high-performance LED color
and white lightsource solutions for both lighting and
graphics applications. The Company acquired SACO
Technologies primarily in order to obtain LED
technology and also to enter into the large format
video screen business for the sports and
entertainment markets. This LED technology has
significant potential for the Company’s Lighting
Segment to be combined with the Company’s existing
lighting fixture expertise and technology to develop a
broad spectrum of white light LED fixtures that will
offer equivalent or improved lighting performance
with significant energy and maintenance savings as
compared to the present metal halide and fluorescent
lighting fixtures. Additionally, this LED technology is
used in the Company’s Graphics Segment to light, accent
and provide color lighting to graphics display and visual
image programs of the Company’s customers.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a
purchase, effective on the date of acquisition. The total
purchase price exceeded the estimated fair value of net
assets by approximately $42.8 million. The valuation
study related to the intangible assets and goodwill was
completed in Fiscal 2007 of which $17.7 million was
identified as various intangible assets. Of the total
intangible assets identified, $3.9 million is included in the
assets of the Technology Segment and the remaining
$13.8 million is considered a corporate asset. The
remaining goodwill of $25.1 million is included in the
assets of the Technology Segment. Identified intangible
assets were amortized beginning July 1, 2006 over
appropriate lives, whereas goodwill was not amortized
to expense on the Company’s financial statements.
Approximately 75% of this goodwill is amortizable to
expense for Canadian tax purposes. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2006 include
the results of LSI Saco Technologies in the Technology
Segment from the June 26, 2006 date of acquisition.

The cost to acquire LSI Saco Technologies has been
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
according to their respective fair values. (In fiscal
2007, adjustments were made to the original purchase
price. The nature and amount of those adjustments
were immaterial to the purchase price.) The following
table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at June 26, 2006.

(In thousands)

Current assets $12,408
Property, plant & equipment 3,888
Intangible assets 17,743
Goodwill 25,083

Current liabilities (10,306)
Long-term debt (3,741)__________

Total purchase price $45,075____________________

The following table sets forth the unaudited
proforma results of operations of the Company for
the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The unaudited proforma financial information
summarizes the results of operations for the periods
indicated as if the SACO Technologies acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of the first period
presented. The proforma information contains the
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NOTE 16 - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)
Quarter Ended

(In thousands except per share data) Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Fiscal Year

2007
Net sales $86,667 $81,640 $75,323 $93,823 $337,453
Gross profit 23,122 22,194 18,474 25,389 89,179
Net Income 5,495 5,035 3,298 6,961 20,789

Earnings per share
Basic $ 0.25 $ 0.23 $ 0.15 $ 0.32 $ 0.96(a)
Diluted $ 0.25 $ 0.23 $ 0.15 $ 0.32 $ 0.95

Range of share prices
High $ 18.95 $ 20.81 $ 20.04 $ 18.45 $ 20.81
Low $ 12.83 $ 15.22 $ 15.22 $ 14.65 $ 12.83

2006
Net sales $70,900 $73,322 $64,504 $71,744 $280,470
Gross profit 18,712 18,837 15,053 18,811 71,413
Net income 3,669 3,906 2,415 4,453 14,443

Earnings per share
Basic $ 0.18 $ 0.20 $ 0.12 $ 0.22 $ 0.72
Diluted $ 0.18 $ 0.19 $ 0.12 $ 0.22 $ 0.71

Range of share prices
High $ 19.15 $ 19.94 $ 17.09 $ 18.56 $ 19.94
Low $ 13.82 $ 15.16 $ 12.71 $ 12.00 $ 12.00

2005
Net sales $68,335 $74,299 $67,814 $71,992 $282,440
Gross profit 17,805 20,006 15,379 19,106 72,296
Net income 3,316 4,792 2,422 4,106(b) 14,636

Earnings per share 
Basic $ 0.17 $ 0.24 $ 0.12 $ 0.21 $ 0.74
Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.24 $ 0.12 $ 0.20 $ 0.73

Range of share prices
High $ 11.62 $ 11.50 $ 12.09 $ 14.36 $ 14.36
Low $ 8.40 $ 9.48 $ 9.84 $ 10.85 $ 8.40

(a) The total of the earnings per share for each of the four quarters does not equal the total earnings per share for the full year because the
calculations are based on the average shares outstanding during each of the individual periods.

(b) The fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 includes a $775,000 non-cash expense ($469,000 net of taxes) associated with “marking-to-market” the
Company’s common shares held in its non-qualified deferred compensation plan in accordance with variable accounting procedures.

At August 18, 2007, there were 395 shareholders of record. The Company believes this represents
approximately 3,000 beneficial shareholders.

actual combined operating results of the Company
and SACO Technologies, with results prior to the
acquisition date adjusted to eliminate transactions
between LSI and SACO, to adjust the facility lease
expense to reflect the terms of a renegotiated lease
agreement, and to add estimated interest expense on
the amount financed for the acquisition. These proforma
results do not purport to be indicative of the results that
would have actually been obtained if the acquisition had

occurred at the beginning of the first period presented,
or that may be obtained in the future.

(Proforma; unaudited; in thousands,
except per share amounts) 2006 2005

Net sales $293,323 $293,933
Net income $  14,128 $  15,292
Diluted earnings per share $      0.65 $      0.71
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The Management of LSI Industries Inc. is responsible for the preparation and accuracy of the financial
statements and other information included in this report. LSI’s Management is also responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of Management, including LSI’s
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2006, based on the criteria set forth in
“Internal Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance that
the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have
been detected. These inherent limitations include the reality that judgments in decision making can be faulty,
the possibility of human error, and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures.

In meeting its responsibility for the reliability of the financial statements, the Company depends upon its
system of internal accounting controls. The system is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded and that transactions are properly authorized and recorded. The system is supported by policies and
guidelines, and by careful selection and training of financial management personnel. The Company also has a
Disclosure Controls Committee, whose responsibility is to help ensure appropriate disclosures and presentation
of the financial statements and notes thereto. Additionally, the Company has an Internal Audit Department to
assist in monitoring compliance with financial policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors meets its responsibility for overview of the Company’s financial statements through
its Audit Committee which is composed entirely of independent Directors who are not employees of the
Company. The Audit Committee meets periodically with Management and Internal Audit to review and assess
the activities of each in meeting their respective responsibilities. Deloitte & Touche LLP has full access to the
Audit Committee to discuss the results of their audit work, the adequacy of internal accounting controls, and the
quality of financial reporting.

Based on LSI’s evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded
that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2007. We reviewed the results of
management’s assessment with Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. Additionally, our independent
registered public accounting firm audited management’s assessment and independently assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is presented in these financial statements has
issued an attestation report on Management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Robert J. Ready Ronald S. Stowell
President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, 
(Principal Executive Officer) and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
LSI Industries Inc.
Cincinnati, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LSI Industries Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule for
the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, such 2007 and 2006 consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of LSI Industries Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the 2007 and 2006 financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1, on July 1, 2005 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modified prospective method of application.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated September 10, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
September 10, 2007
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
LSI Industries Inc.
Cincinnati, Ohio

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that LSI Industries Inc. (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2007 of the Company and our report dated September 10, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” on July 1, 2005.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
September 10, 2007
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Board of Directors and
Shareholders of LSI Industries Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows of LSI Industries Inc. (an Ohio Corporation) and subsidiaries for the year ended June 30, 2005. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of LSI Industries Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005, and the results of LSI
Industries Inc. and subsidiaries operations and their cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2005 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. Schedule II as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Grant Thornton LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
August 19, 2005
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA LSI INDUSTRIES INC.

The following data has been selected from the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
periods and dates indicated: 

Income Statement Data:
(In thousands except per share) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net sales $337,453 $280,470 $282,440 $241,405 $213,133
Cost of products sold 248,274 209,057 210,144 181,883 157,966
Operating expenses 56,629 49,898 49,084 45,488 43,801
Goodwill impairment — — 186 — —____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Operating income 32,550 21,515 23,026 14,034 11,366
Interest (income) (139) (550) (64) (23) (259)
Interest expense 962 78 217 260 378____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Income before income taxes 31,727 21,987 22,873 13,797 11,247
Income taxes 10,938 7,544 8,237 5,107 3,454____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change 20,789 14,443 14,636 8,690 7,793

Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax (a) — — — — 18,541____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Net income (loss) $ 20,789 $ 14,443 $ 14,636 $ 8,690 $ (10,748)____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _________________________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Earnings per common share before 
cumulative effect of accounting change

Basic $ 0.96 $ 0.72 $ 0.74 $ 0.44 $ 0.40
Diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.71 $ 0.73 $ 0.43 $ 0.39

Earnings (loss) per common share 
Basic $ 0.96 $ 0.72 $ 0.74 $ 0.44 $ (0.55)
Diluted $ 0.95 $ 0.71 $ 0.73 $ 0.43 $ (0.54)

Cash dividends paid per share $ 0.51 $ 0.56 $ 0.37 $ 0.26 $ 0.19
Weighted average common shares

Basic 21,676 20,194 19,782 19,717 19,708
Diluted 21,924 20,429 20,087 20,038 19,923

Balance Sheet Data:
(At June 30; in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Working capital $ 68,397 $ 66,787 $ 67,189 $ 64,724 $ 59,633
Total assets 233,612 224,401 172,637 174,732 162,776
Long-term debt, including current maturities — 16,593 — 11,554 14,084
Shareholders’ equity 176,061 164,985 138,040 128,863 124,905

(a) The 2003 expense relates to write off of impaired goodwill when the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
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Location Telephone Number Operations/Products & Services

Lighting Segment

Ohio Cincinnati 513-793-3200 Lighting
California Fontana 909-357-0725 Distribution center
Kansas Kansas City 913-281-1100 Lighting
Kentucky Independence 859-342-9944 Metal fabrication
New York New Windsor 845-220-3200 Lighting
Tennessee Manchester 931-723-4442 Electrical wire harnesses
Texas Dallas 972-466-1133 Lighting

Graphics Segment

Ohio North Canton 330-494-9444 Graphics; project management services
Cincinnati 513-793-3200 Menu boards

Kentucky Independence 859-342-9944 Menu boards
North Carolina Charlotte 704-588-3850 Project management services
Rhode Island Woonsocket 401-766-7446 Graphics
Texas Houston 713-744-4100 Graphics

Technology Segment

Canada Montreal 514-745-0310 LED lighting and video screens

Corporate Headquarters

Ohio Cincinnati 513-793-3200 Corporate Headquarters

OPERATING FACILITIES

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Cincinnati, Ohio

Legal Counsel

Keating Muething Klekamp PLL
Cincinnati, Ohio

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Investor Services, LLC
2 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60602

Annual Meeting

The LSI Industries Inc. annual shareholders’ meeting
will be held Thursday, November 15, 2007 at 10:00
a.m. at the Company’s corporate offices located at
10000 Alliance Road, Cincinnati, Ohio.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The LSI Industries Automatic Dividend Reinvestment
and Stock Purchase Plan offers registered shareholders
and employees an opportunity to purchase additional
shares through automatic dividend reinvestment
and/or optional cash investments. For additional
information, contact:

Computershare Trust Co., Inc.
2 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(866) 770-0656
E-mail: web.queries@computershare.com
Internet: www.computershare.com

Form 10-K

Shareholders may obtain the 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission without charge by writing to: 

Investor Relations Manager 
LSI Industries Inc.
10000 Alliance Road 
Cincinnati, Ohio 45242

Market for the Company’s Common Shares

LSI Industries Inc. Common Shares are traded on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol LYTS.

Internet Site

The LSI Industries site on the Internet,
www.lsi-industries.com, contains the Company’s 10-K
and 10-Q filings, proxy statements, other SEC filings,
annual reports, news releases, stock prices, and a
variety of other information about LSI Industries and
its products and services.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CORPORATE OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Robert J. Ready
President, Chief Executive Officer &

Chairman of the Board
Chairman of Executive Committee

James P. Sferra
Secretary – LSI Industries Inc.
Executive Vice President – Manufacturing
Member of Executive Committee

Gary P. Kreider
Senior Partner of Keating Muething Klekamp PLL 

Cincinnati, Ohio
Member of Compensation Committee 
Chairman of Nominating and Corporate Governance 

Committee

Dennis B. Meyer
Director of Midmark Corporation, Versailles, Ohio
Member of Audit Committee
Chairman of Compensation Committee
Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance 

Committee

Wilfred T. O’Gara
Chief Executive Officer – The O'Gara Group, Inc.

Cincinnati, Ohio
Chairman of Audit Committee
Member of Compensation Committee
Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee

Mark A. Serrianne
Chief Executive Officer – Northlich, Inc.

Cincinnati, Ohio
Member of Audit Committee
Member of Compensation Committee
Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee

Robert J. Ready 
President and Chief Executive Officer

James P. Sferra 
Secretary; Executive Vice President – Manufacturing

Ronald S. Stowell
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

Fred D. Jalbout
President LSI Technology Solutions Plus

David W. McCauley 
President LSI Graphic Solutions Plus

Scott D. Ready 
President LSI Lighting Solutions Plus
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